
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M.  
 

AGENDA 
 
6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance.  
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING November 11, 2019 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION – Reverend Dwight Cimino, Westfield Community Church 

and presentation of colors ceremony presented by Vietnam Veterans of 
American, Chapter 1095 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 
held on October 28, 2019, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 

meeting held on October 2, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Civil Service 

Commission meeting held on October 9, 2019, as recorded and 
transcribed. 

C. Resolution No. 19-48, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a cooperative agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation for the resurfacing of portions of State Route 37 
between Troy Road and US 36.   

D. Resolution No. 19-49, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a cooperative agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation for the US 23/US 36 Exit Bin Wall Improvements 
Project (ODOT Project ID No. 98141). 

E. Establish a November 25, 2019 at 8:00 p.m. as a date and time for 
a public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No 19-67, an 



2 
 

ordinance approving a Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5, 
and 6 on approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of 
Stratford Road, north of Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates 
Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a 
Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District).  

F. Establish November 25, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and first reading of Ordinance No. 19-69, an 
ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2020 and declaring 
an emergency. 

G. Establish December 9, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 19-69, an 
ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2020 and declaring 
an emergency.  
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

8. PRESENTATION 
A. Sister City Annual Update, Rand Guebert, Chairman 

 
9. CONSIDERATION OF A NEW LIQUOR PERMIT 

A. Philly Petroleum LLC DBA Delaware Marathon, 473 S. Sandusky 
St., Delaware, Ohio 43014.  Permit Classes:  C1, C2 

 
10. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-62, an ordinance regulating and 

controlling the movement of vehicular traffic in the City of Delaware by 
designating Vernon Avenue within the City of Delaware Corporation 
limits from Channing Street to Wallace Drive as a through street and 
establishing the speed limit to be thirty-five miles per hour.   

 
11. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-63, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 43.847± acres of land more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Evans Farm Delaware, LLC Annexation by Andrew Wecker, Agent for 
the Petitioners.  
 

12. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-64, an ordinance approving a 
Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for Green Dental 
office expansion at 133 West Hull Drive on approximately 0.991 acres on 
property zoned B-3 (Community Business District).  
 

13. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-65, an ordinance approving a 



3 
 

Preliminary Development Plan request by T & R Properties for the 
Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family attached 
units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) 
located on the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run.  
 

14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-66, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T & R Properties for the Enclave 
at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family attached units 
on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family 
Residential District with a Planned Mixed-use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and West of Rochdale Run.  
 

15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-67, an ordinance approving a 
Development Text Amendment for Delaware Development Plan LTD., for 
Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5, and 6 on approximately 80 acres 
located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of Meeker Way and 
south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District).  
 

16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-68, an ordinance approving an 
Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Delaware Development Plat, 
LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing Sub-Areas 2, 5, and 6 on approximately 8- 
acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of Meeker Way 
and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and Zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District).  
 

17. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

18. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT 

























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-48 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE RESURFACING OF PORTIONS OF STATE ROUTE 
37 BETWEEN TROY ROAD AND US 36. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) intends to resurface portions 
of State Route 37 (Central Avenue) between Troy Road and US 36 (East William 
Street at “The Point”). This project falls under ODOT’s Urban Paving Initiative, 
which requires that the local municipality contribute 20% of the total cost for 
the surface treatment for the portion of the project within its corporation limits. 
Additionally, the City is required to contribute 100% of the cost of non-surface 
related items such as signal repairs, curbs, gutters, utility relocation expenses, 
and full-depth pavement repairs. Once final plans are developed and quantity 
splits are determined, the City of Delaware will be invoiced for its share of the 
project costs approximately six weeks before the project’s scheduled sale. The 
sale is tentatively scheduled for early 2020. It is anticipated this work will 
occur in the summer of 2020. 
 
The total estimated cost of the project (combined ODOT and city portions) is 
approximately $620,000.  
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 



ODOT District 6 is administering the project, and the State requires consent 
legislation be passed by the local government to allow for the project to occur 
within the corporate limits.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Based on initial cost estimates, the projection for the City’s contribution for 
this project is estimated to be $220,000. The City will request to be invoiced 
after the project is awarded so that funds can be paid in 2020, as appropriated 
in the 2020 Budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-48 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH 
THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 
THE RESURFACING OF PORTIONS OF STATE ROUTE 
37 BETWEEN TROY ROAD AND US 36. 

 
WHEREAS, the STATE has identified the need for the described project: 
 

This project proposes to resurface portions of State Route 37 (SR37) within the 
City of Delaware, approximately from Troy Road to US 36; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City will be responsible for contributing twenty percent 
(20%) of the total cost of the surface treatment (resurfacing) plus one hundred 
percent (100%) of the cost of any non-surface treatment items; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation has estimated the 
City’s contribution to be $220,000 for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has made base repairs to this section of SR37 in 

preparation for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation will bid and construct 

the project in 2020. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Delaware, Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City of Delaware, referred to as the Local Public Agency 
(LPA) gives consent to the Director of Transportation of the State of Ohio 
(Director) to complete this project; 

 
SECTION 2. The City hereby agrees to cooperate with the Director in the 

planning, design and construction of the identified highway improvement project 
and grants consent to the Ohio Department of Transportation for its development 
and construction for the project in accordance with plans, specifications and 
estimates as approved by the Director; 
 

SECTION 3. The Ohio Department of Transportation shall assume and bear 
one hundred percent of the necessary costs of the State’s highway improvement 
project; the City’s share of the project cost is estimated to be $220,000; 
 

SECTION 4. The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent 
(100%) of the total cost of those features requested by the City which are not 
necessary for the improvement as determined by the State and Federal Highway 
Administration. 



 
SECTION 5. The LPA agrees that all right-of-way required for the described 

project will be acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State 
and Federal regulations. The LPA also understands that right-of-way costs 
include eligible utility costs. The LPA agrees that all utility accommodation, 
relocation and reimbursements will comply with the current provisions of 23 CRF 
645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual.   
 

SECTION 6. Upon completion of the project, and unless otherwise agreed, 
the LPA shall: (1) provide adequate maintenance for the project in accordance 
with all applicable state and federal law, including, but not limited to, Title 23, 
U.S.C., Section 116; (2) provide ample financial resources, as necessary, for the 
maintenance of the project; (3) maintain the right-of-way, keeping it free of 
obstructions, and (4) hold said right-of-way inviolate for public highway 
purposes; 
 

SECTION 7. The City Manager of the City of Delaware is hereby empowered 
on behalf of the City of Delaware to enter into contracts with the Director 
necessary to complete the above described project. 
 

SECTION 8. That the Clerk of Council will transmit to the Director a fully 
executed copy of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 9. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 10.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RESOLUTION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-49 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE US23/US36 EXIT BIN WALL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT (ODOT PROJECT ID NO. 98141). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) intends to undertake a project 
that in summary will: 

• Make repairs to the US 23 overpass bridge over E. William St. (US 36); 
• Make repairs and expand the bridge over Delaware Run along the US 23 

to E. William St. (US 36) exit ramp;  
• Make repairs to the bridge over Delaware Run along the E. William St. 

(US 36) to US 23 on ramp. 
• Make repairs to streambank protection along Delaware Run in the 

project area; 
• Make repairs to the existing retaining wall (Bin Wall) between 

northbound US 23 and the off ramp and add aesthetic treatments to the 
retaining wall; and 

• Make repairs to the culvert under Lake St. (US 42) between Joy Ave. and 
Horseshoe Rd. along with associated repairs to the adjacent stone wall, 
headwall and guardrail at the spillway of Greenwood Lake.  

 



ODOT will fund 100% of the costs that are required to perform the project. The 
City is required to contribute 100% of additional items requested by the City 
that are not essential to the project; these costs involve aesthetic treatments 
being added to the project at the retaining wall between northbound US 23 and 
the off ramp to E. William St. (US 36). Once final plans are developed and 
quantity splits are determined, the City of Delaware will be invoiced for its 
share of the project costs approximately six weeks before the project’s 
scheduled sale. The sale is tentatively scheduled for early 2020. It is 
anticipated this work will occur in the spring through autumn of 2020. 

This project is included in the approved 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) for construction in 2020 at a cost of $50,000 (see US 23/36 Exit Bin Wall 
Improvements project). 

The total estimated cost of the project (combined ODOT and City portions) is 
approximately $3,500,000. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
ODOT District 6 is administering the project, and the State requires consent 
legislation be passed by the local government to allow for the project to occur 
within the corporate limits.   

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Based on initial cost estimates, the projection for the City’s contribution for 
this project is estimated to be $30,000. The City will request to be invoiced in 
2020 so that payment can be made as appropriated in the 2020 Budget. 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 

PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  

ATTACHMENT(S
Photographs



RESOLUTION NO. 19-49 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH 
THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 
THE US 23/US 36 EXIT BIN WALL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT (ODOT PROJECT ID NO. 98141). 

 
WHEREAS, the STATE has identified the need for the described project: 
 

This project proposes to repair bridges at the US 23 and William Street 
interchange, repair the retaining wall (Bin Wall) at the US 23 to William Street 
off-ramp, and repair a culvert on US 42 within the city limits. 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation will be responsible for 
one hundred percent (100%) of the costs necessary for the project and the City 
will be responsible for contributing one hundred percent (100%) of additional 
items requested by the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation has estimated the 
City’s contribution to be $30,000 for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation will bid and construct 

the project in 2020. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Delaware, Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City of Delaware, referred to as the Local Public Agency 
(LPA) gives consent to the Director of Transportation of the State of Ohio 
(Director) to complete this project. 

 
SECTION 2. The City hereby agrees to cooperate with the Director in the 

planning, design and construction of the identified highway improvement project 
and grants consent to the Ohio Department of Transportation for its development 
and construction for the project in accordance with plans, specifications and 
estimates as approved by the Director. 
 

SECTION 3. The Ohio Department of Transportation shall assume and bear 
one hundred percent of the necessary costs of the State’s highway improvement 
project; the City’s share of the project cost for the bridge aesthetic and 
rehabilitation work is estimated to be $30,000. 
 

SECTION 4. The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent 
(100%) of the total cost of those features requested by the City which are not 
necessary for the improvement as determined by the State and Federal Highway 
Administration. 



 
SECTION 5. The LPA agrees that all right-of-way required for the described 

project will be acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State 
and Federal regulations. The LPA also understands that right-of-way costs 
include eligible utility costs. The LPA agrees that all utility accommodation, 
relocation and reimbursements will comply with the current provisions of 23 CRF 
645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual.   
 

SECTION 6. Upon completion of the project, and unless otherwise agreed, 
the LPA shall: (1) provide adequate maintenance for the project in accordance 
with all applicable state and federal law, including, but not limited to, Title 23, 
U.S.C., Section 116; (2) provide ample financial resources, as necessary, for the 
maintenance of the project; (3) maintain the right-of-way, keeping it free of 
obstructions, and (4) hold said right-of-way inviolate for public highway 
purposes; 
 

SECTION 7. The City Manager of the City of Delaware is hereby empowered 
on behalf of the City of Delaware to enter into contracts with the Director 
necessary to complete the above described project. 
 

SECTION 8. That the Clerk of Council will transmit to the Director a fully 
executed copy of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 9. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 10.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RESOLUTION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

US 23/US 36 Exit Bin Wall Improvement 
 

 

Current face of the Bin Wall.   

 

 

 

 

Sample of the face of the wall that was included in the CIP.  Exact final details will be 
determined later.  

 

 



DELAWARE SISTER CITY ADVISORY BOARD 
6th ANNUAL REPORT  
SEPTEMBER 1, 2019 

 
 
   Current Members:  Representing: 
                          
   Rand Guebert , Chair  Local citizens 
   Julie Horvath   Delaware City Schools 
   Darell Albon                              Ohio Wesleyan University 
   Julie Means   Local citizens 
   Carolyn Kay Riggle                  Delaware City Council 
   Colleen Rush   Local citizens 
   Rita Selle-Grider                       Local citizens 
    
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
During the past year we have had significant contacts with both of our Sister Cities, 
Sakata and Baumholder, as well as with Lahardane, Ireland.   
 
There were no changes to the composition of the Board.  We have had a tremendous 
amount of help this year from Elaine McCloskey, which we want to recognize early 
in this report. 
 
We continue to meet regularly on the second Tuesday of each quarter. 
 
 

SIXTH YEAR DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Baumholder 
 
City Council Member, Lisa Keller, and Advisory Board Chair, Rand Guebert were able 
to attend the dedication September 14, 2018 of the new museum in Baumholder.  
Mayor Riggle was planning to attend but was unable to at the last minute.  Mrs. 
Keller gave a short speech at the dedication in recognition of our sister city 
relationship. 
 
During our visit we had a tour of the Army Post.  Its mission is being expanded as 
other Posts in Germany are closed.  This is important for the development of the 
local economy.  Many military veterans in Central Ohio passed through Baumholder 
on their overseas deployments, and we continue to look for opportunities to honor 
this.  
 
Shortly after our return an 8-person delegation of those who hosted us in 
Baumholder arrived for a five-day visit in Delaware.  This delegation was headed by 



Mayor Bernd Alsfasser and Bernd Mai, who is Public Affairs Advisor for the Army 
Post.  Mrs. McCloskey organized a very extensive program, which allowed them to 
meet many people in the Delaware community.  The delegation was able to attend a 
soccer game at OWU, where Coach Jay Martin was able to recognize the important 
role of soccer in our sister city relationship.  
 
Sakata 
 
A student art exchange is currently in process between Delaware City Schools and 
schools in Sakata.  This is being undertaken in conjunction with the Arts Castle, 
where 41 pictures from Japan will be on display starting in December. 
 
Students were asked to paint pictures of their home town, which would give people 
in the other city different perspectives of that place.  The Board would like to thank 
Mrs. McCloskey and Paula Blosser from the Arts Castle for their support in collecting 
and shipping the art work. 
 
A reception to open the exhibit at the Arts Castle is planned for December 1.  We 
hope that many people from the Delaware community will be able to view these 
pictures as they will be on display through the middle of January.  We are very 
proud of the art work, created by our Delaware students, which is now in Sakata. 
 
Also, this year, planning has begun to bring photographs from the Ken Domon 
Museum in Sakata to the Columbus area in 2021.  This project is being coordinated 
by Erin Fletcher, Director of OWU’s Ross Art Museum.  We will be working with the 
Columbus Museum of Art and the Dublin Arts Council on this important exhibit. 
 
Lahardane 
 
While not a sister city, Delaware has begun to have regular contacts here.  A group 
of student gymnasts visited Lahardane in March and another group of athletes were 
there in June. 
 
The mayor of Lahardane visited Delaware at the end of February for several days. 
 
We had no contacts with Omutninsk, Russia during the past year, and this sister city 
relationship continues to lie dormant. 
 
Also, during the past year, the Advisory Board investigated the potential of 
becoming a 501(c)-3 entity as modeled by Greater Columbus Sister Cities 
International.  More consultation is required before this can be properly considered.  
 
 

 
OBJECTIVES FOR 2019-2020 

 



During the next year we will host the Sakata student art exhibit at the Arts Castle 
and continue preparations and fund-raising for the Ken Domon exhibit in 2021.  
Middle school students from Sakata will again be visiting Dempsey this November. 
 
We will be making plans with our Baumholder friends for visits in 2021.  It is hoped 
that several people from Delaware will be able to accompany the OWU soccer team 
to Baumholder that summer to help commemorate the 30th anniversary of these 
visits.  A delegation from Baumholder is hoping to come to Delaware again that year 
to recognize the 10th anniversary of our sister city relationship. 
 
Further school-related visits to Lahardane are contemplated. 
 
The Advisory Board is always mindful that we are just that—an Advisory Board.  We 
have developed solid relationships with the city administrations in Baumholder and 
Sakata over the last six years, and we will continue to evaluate how to build on these 
achievements for the future. 
 
Rand Guebert, Chair 
October 25, 2019 
 

 
 









  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-62    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
        
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE REGULATING AND CONTROLLING THE MOVEMENT OF 
VEHICULAR TRAFFIC IN THE CITY OF DELAWARE BY DESIGNATING VERNON 
AVENUE WITHIN THE CITY OF DELAWARE CORPORATION LIMITS FROM 
CHANNING STREET TO WALLACE DRIVE AS A THROUGH STREET AND 
ESTABLISHING THE SPEED LIMIT TO BE THIRTY-FIVE MILES PER HOUR.  
  
BACKGROUND:  
Delaware Township requested the speed limit on the section of Vernon Avenue 
within their jurisdiction be reduced from 55 mph to 35 mph.  ODOT 
approved/journalized this reduction with the understanding the City of Delaware 
would raise the speed limit from 25 mph to 35 mph on sections of Vernon Avenue 
within the City Corporation Limits between Channing Street and Wallace Drive 
to conform.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
It is necessary to define the designation of certain streets within the city 
corporate limits, in accordance with current definitions provided in ORC 4511, 
as being “Through” or “Non-through” streets.  This section applies to certain local 
streets that have been annexed into the city, however in segments of less than 
one-mile in length, thereby requiring a maximum speed limit of 25 MPH being 
posted.  In these cases, designating the street as a “Through” street permits a 
uniform speed limit, typically 35 MPH, to be posted and maintained. This 



ordinance is to define Vernon Avenue from Channing Street to Wallace Drive a 
“Through” street within the city’s corporation limits, and to establish a speed 
limit of thirty-five miles per hour (35 MPH) to the section of Vernon Avenue from 
Channing Street to Wallace Drive. ORC 4511.21 sections J, permits local 
authorities to authorize higher prima-facie speeds on streets where determined 
appropriate, provided no speed shall exceed fifty miles per hour (50 MPH).  This 
speed limit will conform with the section of Vernon Avenue within Delaware 
Township which has been journalized as 35 mph by ODOT on July 10, 2019.    
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the October 21, 2019 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials and labor to install these signs is estimated at $50.00 to 
come out of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 ODOT Speed Limit Revision Journalization Documentation 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-62 
 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING AND CONTROLLING 
THE MOVEMENT OF VEHICULAR TRAFFIC IN THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE BY DESIGNATING VERNON 
AVENUE WITHIN THE CITY OF DELAWARE 
CORPORATION LIMITS FROM CHANNING STREET TO 
WALLACE DRIVE AS A THROUGH STREET AND 
ESTABLISHING THE SPEED LIMIT TO BE THIRTY-
FIVE MILES PER HOUR.  
 

WHEREAS, Section 4511.21(J) of the Ohio Revised Code permits local 
authorities in their respective jurisdictions to authorize by ordinance higher 
prima facia speeds upon through highways provided signs are erected giving 
notice of the authorized speed;  

 
WHEREAS, according to Section 4511.21 (B) 3 of the Ohio Revised Code a 

through highway within municipal corporations outside business districts has a 
speed limit of thirty-five miles per hour; 

 
WHEREAS, ODOT has journalized the section of Vernon Avenue within 

Delaware Township to be thirty-five miles per hour; 
 
WHEREAS, it becomes periodically necessary to make adjustments to the 

designation, use, and associated speed limits assigned to certain streets 
throughout the city.   

 
WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed this speed 

limit change by a 3-0 vote at the October 21, 2019 meeting.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.   That Vernon Avenue, or parts thereof, within the City of 
Delaware Corporation Limits from Channing Street to Wallace Drive, be, and 
hereby designated as a Through Street or Highway, in accordance with ORC 
4511.65, upon which all vehicles may proceed uninterruptedly according to law 
except where the operation of said vehicles is otherwise regulated by traffic 
control device and which allows for a speed limit of thirty-five miles per hour.   

   
SECTION 2. That the prima-facie speed limit shall be established at thirty-

five miles per hour (35 MPH) in accordance with ORC 4511.21 on Vernon Avenue 
from Channing Street to Wallace Drive.  

 



SECTION 3. That the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized and 
directed to cause the installation of such traffic control signs and devices as are 
required to carry out the provision in this ordinance. 
 

Section 4. That any ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent 
herewith are herewith repealed.  

 
Section 5. This Council find and determines that all formal actions of this 

Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.     
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-63    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 43.847± ACRES OF LAND 
MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE EVANS FARM 
DELAWARE, LLC ANNEXATION BY ANDREW WECKER, AGENT FOR THE 
PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This process involves several steps and actions by the County and City in order 
for an annexation to ultimately be accepted by the City.  The City took the first 
city step in the process which required determination of services the City could 
provide – the Resolution of Services passed August 12, 2019 via Resolution 19-
37.  The legislation before City Council currently is the final acceptance of 
annexation which would bring the property into the City.  City Council must 
decide to accept, accept with conditions, or deny the annexation.  If no action 
is taken by the ORC dictated time frame ending on January 6, 2020, ORC 
dictates that the annexation will be automatically denied.   The Applicant has 
brought a concept plan forward to Planning Commission for initial feedback 
which was generally well received by the Commission.  The Applicant has 
previously stated they wished to begin their zoning, preliminary plan, and 
preliminary plat process prior to annexation acceptance though Staff has not 
received applicants as of the date of writing.  At this time the earliest hearing 
date for these if applied for today would be the January 6, 2020 Planning 
Commission meeting.   



Perhaps the most important issue remaining to be agreed upon with the 
annexation is related to the inclusion of the property into the Delaware South 
New Community Authority as other properties are within this southeast area of 
the community.  Evans Farm is already included within its own NCA which is a 
complicating factor in this discussion.  City administration has offered the 
Applicant several alternatives that would address the issue but no conclusion 
has been reached as of the time of writing.  The options presented include:  (1) 
Pay the present value of the expected Delaware South NCA revenue that would 
have been collected if they joined the Delaware South NCA; (2) Direct the 
existing Evans Farm NCA to pay the City what the Delaware South NCA charge 
would collect until the Delaware South NCA debt is paid.  
 
Multiple readings of this annexation are anticipated as a result.  Though the 
final ORC required deadline in January 6, 2020, the meeting schedule of 
Council would dictate that the final, year end Council meeting slated for 
December 19, 2019 would be the final meeting date at which a decision would 
need to be made to avoid an automatic ORC denial of the annexation. 
Finally, as was noted in the Fact Sheet for the Resolution of Services for this 
annexation, Staff suggests several conditions of annexation that will provide 
certainty and clarity to the City as well as the Applicant: 
 

1. The applicant shall include the property in the Delaware South New 
Community Authority or make an equivalent financial contribution as 
determined by the City. 

2. A $1,000 per dwelling unit additional transportation fee shall be required 
similar to other properties in the area to ensure needed transportation 
improvements in the area. 

3. The property is within the South East Highland trunk sewer district 
requiring an additional sewer capacity charge of $3,200 per dwelling unit 
in addition to the standard and customary capacity fees of the city in 
effect at the time of permitting. 

4. The extension of any needed infrastructure for water, sewer, or roadways 
shall be at the cost to the development and as required by the City 
through the normal and customary development review process. 

5. Transportation considerations to be determined in final form through the 
zoning and development review process: 

a. Road connectivity shall be required to adjacent property. 
b. Any roadway connections to Peachblow Rd. shall be coordinated 

with the Delaware County Engineer as well as the city. 

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the process that annexations must follow 
throughout Ohio.  This legislation is the final City step in the process to 
formally accept the annexation of the property.  The City has until January 6, 



2020 to pass this acceptance of annexation Ordinance or it is considered by 
ORC to be denied.  As a practical matter, City Council’s last meeting prior to 
that date would eb December 19, 2019 Year End Council meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution  
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution  



ORDINANCE NO. 19-63 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
43.847± ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE EVANS FARM DELAWARE, LLC ANNEXATION 
BY ANDREW WECKER, AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, Andrew Wecker, agent for the petitioners, has filed with the 

Delaware County Commissioners for annexation of 43.847 acres of land, more or 
less, the description and map are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B; and 
 

WHEREAS, Andrew Wecker, as agent for the petitioners on August 5, 2019 
delivered to the Clerk of the Delaware City Council the notice of his filing of the 
annexation petition with the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County 
and its clerk on August 5, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code requires that within 20 days following 
the date the petition is filed, the City Council shall, by resolution, adopt a 
statement as to what services, if any, the City will provide and an approximate 
date by which it will provide them to the territory proposed for annexation, upon 
annexation, which was completed when City Council passed a Resolution of 
Services on August 12, 2019 via Resolution 19-37; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on September 5, 2019 (See attached).  The territory to be 
annexed is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 43.847 acres of 
land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” on 
the annexation known as the Evans Farm Delaware, LLC by Andrew Wecker, 
agent for the petitioners with the following conditions that: 
 



1. The applicant shall include the property in the Delaware South New 
Community Authority or make an equivalent financial contribution as 
determined by the City. 

2. A $1,000 per dwelling unit additional transportation fee shall be required 
similar to other properties in the area to ensure needed transportation 
improvements in the area. 

3. The property is within the South East Highland trunk sewer district 
requiring an additional sewer capacity charge of $3,200 per dwelling unit in 
addition to the standard and customary capacity fees of the city in effect at 
the time of permitting. 

4. The extension of any needed infrastructure for water, sewer, or roadways 
shall be at the cost to the development and as required by the City through 
the normal and customary development review process. 

5. Transportation considerations to be determined in final form through the 
zoning and development review process: 

a. Road connectivity shall be required to adjacent property. 
b. Any roadway connections to Peachblow Rd. shall be coordinated with 

the Delaware County Engineer as well as the city. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 

ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE FOR RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































FACT SHEET

DATE: 11/11/2019 

RESOLUTION NO: 

AGENDA ITEM NO:  12 

ORDINANCE NO: 19-64 

READING: FIRST  PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR GREEN DENTAL OFFICE EXPANSION AT 133 WEST 
HULL DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 0.991 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT). 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan 
requirements of the zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on November 6, 
2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-64 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
GREEN DENTAL OFFICE EXPANSION AT 133 WEST 
HULL DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 0.991 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Green Dental Office Expansion at 133 West Hull Drive on approximately 0.991 
acres on property zoned B-3 (Community Business District) and (PC Case 2019-
2346). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Green Dental Office Expansion at 133 West Hull Drive on approximately 0.991 
acres on property zoned B-3 (Community Business District), is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. A formal set of engineering drawings shall not be required, but any 
requirements for this development shall be included in the building 
permit. 

2. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be 
painted to match the existing building color. 

3. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material 
and color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  

4. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the City and all 
lighting must meet the requirements of the approved development text 
and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

5. The light poles shall be black. 
6. One (1) additional front yard tree shall be planted in the northwest 

corner of the property. 
7. The applicant shall make a payment of $12,900, will be due in lieu of 

planting trees, or plant more trees on this site, or another qualifying site, 
or remove less trees, or a combination of all to achieve compliance with 
the Tree Preservation Regulations in Chapter 1168. 

8. Any future building signage shall achieve compliance with the Zoning 
Code. 
 



 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:  19-65   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST 
BY T&R PROPERTIES FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 
14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 6, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-65 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY T&R PROPERTIES  
FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND 
WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run  (PC Case 2019-2344). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24-
foot-wide private streets built to public street standards with no 
parking permitted on the streets. 

3. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate 
agencies to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording 
the Final Plat.  

4. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



5. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements as shown on this plan and the approved 
development text. 

6. The single family attached units shall comply achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1171 Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards 
and typical elevations shall be provided for review with the Final 
Development Plan.  

7. The minimum dwelling unit size shall be 1,200 square feet per the 
approved development text. 

8. A deck or patio (12’x16’ maximum size) shall be permitted on the lots 
identified on the Preliminary Development Plan per the developer. The 
location, size and setback of such deck or patio is identified on the 
Preliminary Development Plan. 

9. A minimum 6-foot-high mound with a double row of staggered 6-foot-
high minimum evergreen trees planted 20 feet on center shall be 
installed along Curve Road adjacent to lots 46-59. The maintenance of 
the mound and associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association. 

10. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 
Design Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

11. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Shade Tree Commission. 

12. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the minimum zoning 
regulations shall be submitted in the Final Development Plan submittal 

13. Any ground signage shall achieve compliance with the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan and the minimum zoning requirements.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 14    DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-66    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST 
BY T&R PROPERTIES FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 
14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 6, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-66 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY T & R PROPERTIES  
FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND 
WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run  (PC Case 2019-2345). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24-
foot-wide private streets built to public street standards with no 
parking permitted on the streets. 

3. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate 
agencies to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording 
the Final Plat.  

4. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



5. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements as shown on this plan and the approved 
development text. 

6. The single family attached units shall comply achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1171 Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards 
and typical elevations shall be provided for review with the Final 
Development Plan. 

7. The minimum dwelling unit size shall be 1,200 square feet per the 
approved development text. 

8. A deck or patio (12’x16’ maximum size) shall be permitted on the lots 
identified on the Preliminary Development Plan per the developer. The 
location, size and setback of such deck or patio is identified on the 
Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Subdivision Plat. 

9. A minimum 6-foot-high mound with a double row of staggered 6-foot-
high minimum evergreen trees planted 20 feet on center shall be 
installed along Curve Road adjacent to lots 46-59. The maintenance of 
the mound and associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association. 

10. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 
Design Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

11. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Shade Tree Commission. 

12. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the minimum zoning 
regulations shall be submitted in the Final Development Plan submittal 

13. Any ground signage shall achieve compliance with the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan and the minimum zoning requirements.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-67    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       November 25, 2019 @ 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT AMENDMENT FOR 
DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING TO 
SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST OF 
US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH 
OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on November 6, 
2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-67 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT 
AMENDMENT FOR DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 
AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST 
OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF 
MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES 
SUBDIVISION AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC Case 2019-1578). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 
1. Any new structure(s) or any change of use of any proposed buildings or 

property shall require conformance to all provisions of the Development Text. 
2. The parcels and/or sites that have a layout on the Preliminary Development 

Plan shall require Final Development Plan approval while the parcels and/or 
sites that do not have a layout shall require Preliminary and Final Development 
Approval by the Planning Commission and City Council. 

3. The development text, renderings and all associated submitted plans (including 
the Comprehensive Sign Plan) comprise the zoning and development 
requirements for the site together with all other City applicable code and 
regulations.  

4. The number of multi-family units in Sub-Area 2 shall not exceed 178 dwelling 
units. 

5. In Sub-Area 2, the one-bedroom units shall be a minimum 790 square feet and 
the two bedroom units shall be a minimum 1,100 square feet.  



6. In Sub-Area 2, the carriage apartments shall be minimum 570 square feet and 
there shall only be 10 such units. 

7. In Sub-Area 2, the maximum building height shall be increased to 47 feet from 
35 feet for the three-story structures shown on the Development Plan.  

8. Convert the storm water detention area (approximately 3.29 acres) currently 
located in Sub-Area 5 adjacent to Hawthorn Boulevard to developable land (Lot 
12724) in accordance with the Sub-Area 5 zoning text and to have the storm 
water area be relocated to Sub-Area 5 on approximately 3.202 acres (Lot 
12730) located on the northwest corner of Coughlin Lane and Meeker Way. 

9. Amend Sub-Area 5 to permit the side setback for internal collector roads to 
be 40 feet as permitted in Sub-Area 6.  

10. Amend Sub-Areas 5 and 6 to permit internal side yard setbacks to be 30 
feet instead of 60 feet.   

11. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum lot area to be as approved with the 
Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead of 1.5-acre lot 
minimum. 

12. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum lot width and frontage to be as 
approved with the Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead 
of 120 feet minimum lot width. 

13. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum building coverage to be as approved 
with the Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead of 40% 
maximum building coverage. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 11/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES 
LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF 
MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION AND ZONED 
A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129 requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on November 6, 
2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-68 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR DELAWARE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON 
APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST OF US 23, 
WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF MEEKER 
WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of an Amended Preliminary Development Plan for 
Delaware Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 
on approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC Case 2019-
1579). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. In Sub-Area 2, the applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, 
including any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out 
through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments 
regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject 
to modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for review. 

2. In Sub-Area 2, the limestone on the building shall achieve compliance with 
the approved development text.  

3. In Sub-Area 2, all building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall 
be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

4. In Sub-Area 2, all roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened from 
public view. 



5. In Sub-Area 2, the applicant shall submit all building elevations along with 
material and color samples for all building materials for staff review and 
approval.  

6. In Sub-Area 2, the trach compactor enclosure shall be constructed of stone 
to match the building and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 
The trach compactor shall be screened with landscaping from Stratford 
Road. 

7. In Sub-Area 2, the proposed approximate 1.65-acre open space called 
“Stratford Commons”, located on the extreme northwestern portion of the 
Sub-Area, shall be programmed with amenities and view lines as originally 
conceived per the approved development text as well as enhanced with the 
Final Development Plan. 

8. In Sub-Area 2, the site shall require a payment in lieu of planting trees of 
$44,007.41 (9.734 acres x $4,521 per acre) prior to the approval of 
construction drawings. 

9. In Sub-Area 2, all the landscape plans shall be approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

10. In Sub-Area 2, the lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by 
the City and all lighting shall meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

11. In Sub-Area 2, all signage including size, material and color shall be 
submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

12. In Sub-Area 5, the applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, 
including any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out 
through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments 
regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject 
to modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for review. 

13. In Sub-Area 5, the limestone on the building shall achieve compliance 
with the approved development text.  

14. In Sub-Area 5, all building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) 
shall be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

15. In Sub-Area 5, all roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened 
from public view. 

16. In Sub-Area 5, the applicant shall submit all building elevations along 
with material and color samples for all building materials for staff review 
and approval.  

17. In Sub-Area 5 the dumpster enclosure shall be constructed of stone 
to match the building and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 

18. In Sub-Area 5 the site shall require a payment in lieu of planting trees 
of $22,852.39 an acre prior to the approval of construction drawings. 

19. In Sub-Area 5, all the landscape plans shall be approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 



20. In Sub-Area 5, the lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by 
the City and all lighting must meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

21. In Sub-Area5, all signage including size, material and color shall be 
submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

22. In Sub-Area 5, a right-in only curb cut on the south side of Hawthorn 
Boulevard shall be permitted per the City Engineer requirements. 

23. In Sub-Area 5, there shall be no additional access points on Meeker 
Way between US 23 and Coughlin Lane. 

24. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the applicant needs to obtain engineering 
approvals, including any storm water and utility issues that need to be 
worked out through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All 
comments regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary 
and subject to modification or change based on the final technical review by 
the Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

25. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the limestone on the building shall achieve 
compliance with the approved development text.  

26. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all building appurtenances (coping, 
downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

27. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all roof top mechanical equipment shall be 
screened from public view. 

28. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the applicant shall submit all building 
elevations along with material and color samples for all building materials 
for staff review and approval.  

29. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the dumpster enclosure shall be 
constructed of stone to match the building and have wood doors painted or 
stained to match. 

30. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the site shall require a payment in lieu of 
planting trees of $11,939.96 (2.641 acres x $4,521 per acre) prior to the 
approval of construction drawings. 

31. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all the landscape plans shall be approved 
by the Shade Tree Commission. 

32. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724) the lighting plan shall be reviewed and 
approved by the City and all lighting must meet the requirements of the 
approved development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

33. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all signage including size, material and 
color shall be submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

34. In Sub-Area 6, a right-in curb cut on the southside of Penny Way 
shall be permitted per the City Engineer. A right-out curb shall be permitted 
based on the proposed site plan if it achieves compliance with City 
Engineering requirements.  
 



 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































































































































































































































































































































































City Manager Report 20191111 
 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: November 7, 2019 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Manager Meetings/Events 
 October 21-23 
  ICMA Conference  
 October 25 
  Environmental Policy Class, OWU 
 October 28 
  Rotary 
  City Council Meeting 
 October 29 
  311 Citizen Solution Meeting 
  Unity Park Public Meeting 
  Community Conversation about Climate Change, Andrews House 
 October 31 
  911 Board Meeting 
 November 1 
  COMMA 
  First Friday 
 November 4 
  Rotary 
 November 6 
  First Commonwealth Bank – Networking and Hors D’oeuvres 
  
  



CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 11, 2019 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2019 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Steel in the Air, Inc Construction administration and 

observation services for tertiary 
improvements at the Wastewater Plant 

$3,000 Public Utilities 

Columbus Asphalt Paving Pavement Maintenance Program 
(Community Development Block Grant) 

$148,920.40 Public Works 

    
 



November 
 

 

2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
     1 2 

       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities Canceled 
Civil Service 
Commission 3pm 
Planning 6:30pm 

   

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Council 7pm  BZA 6:30 pm    

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 Organizational Council 

Meeting 7pm 
Parks and Rec Advisory 
Board 6:30 pm 

HPC 6:30 pm    

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 Council 7pm   Thanksgiving – 

City Offices Closed 
City Offices Closed  

       
       

 



December 
 

 

2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 Budget Work Session 
6:30 pm 

 Civil Service 3 pm 
Planning 6:30 pm 

Budget Work Session 
6:30 pm 

First Friday – Christmas 
Tree Lighting 

 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
Christmas Parade 3pm Council 7 pm  BZA 6 :30 pm Budget Work Session 

6:30 pm if needed 
  

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
 Parking and Safety 6pm  HPC 6:30 pm Year End Council 

Meeting 7 pm 
  

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
  City Offices Closed at 

noon 
City Offices Closed    

29 30 31     
       

       
       

 


	01 20191111 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20191028 council minutes
	03 20191002 planning minutes
	04 20191009 civil service minutes
	05 Fact Sheet Res 19-48 PID 106090 Urban ReSurf
	06 Resolution No. 19-48  PID 106090 Urban ReSurf
	07 Fact Sheet Res 19-49,  Bin Wall PID 98141
	08 Resolution No. 19-49, Bin Wall  PID 98141
	09 photo of bin wall
	11 Sister City Annual Report - 2019
	12 Philly Petroleum Liquor Permit
	13 fact sheet ORD 19 -62   Vernon Ave Speed Changes
	14 ORD 19 -62  Vernon Ave Speed Changes
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-62
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-62

	15 Vernon Ave 35mph ODOT Jounalization
	16 fact sheet ord 19 -63, evans farm annex
	17 ord 19 -63, evans farm annex
	19 Granting of Prayer-Evans Farm Annex
	20 res 19-37, Evan Farms Res of Services
	22 factsheet ord 19-64, 2019-2346 Green Dental Office Expansion CPFDP
	23 ord 19-64 , 2019-2346 Green Dental Office Expansion CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-64
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-64
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	24 2019-2346 Green Dental Office Staff Report
	25 Fact Sheet ord 19-65, 2019-2344 Enclaves at the Ravines at Olentangy PDP
	26 ord 19-65, 2019-2344 Enclaves at the Ravines of Olentangy PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-65
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-65
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	27 Fact Sheet ord 19-66, 2019-2345 Enclaves at the Ravines at Olentangy PSP
	28 ord 19-66, 2019-2345 Enclaves at the Ravines of Olentangy PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-66
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-66
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	29 2019-3344-2345 enclave at ravines staff report
	30 factsheet ord 19-67, 2019-1578 Couglins Crossing REZ
	31 ord 19-67, 2019-1578 Coughlin Crossing REZ
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-67
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-67
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	32 factsheet ord 19-68 , 2019-1579 Couglins Crossing APDP
	33 ord 19-68 , 2019-1579 Coughlin Crossing APDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-68
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-68
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	34 2019-1578-1579 Nov Submission - coughlin crossing
	35 city managers report 20191111
	36 contract approval 20191111
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 11, 2019
	2019
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$3,000
	Steel in the Air, Inc
	Construction administration and observation services for tertiary improvements at the Wastewater Plant

	$148,920.40
	Columbus Asphalt Paving
	Pavement Maintenance Program (Community Development Block Grant)


	37 November 2019
	38 December 2019

